
Cambridge Joint Area Committee: Minutes 
 
Date: 11 June 2025 
 
Time: 4:00 p.m. – 5:55 p.m. 
 
Venue: Council Chamber, Guildhall, Cambridge 
 
Present:  City Councillors: Mark Ashton, Dave Baigent, Cheney Payne, 

Richard Robertson and Katie Thornburrow 
County Councillors: Alex Beckett, Mike Black, Bryony Goodliffe, 
   Ian Manning, Peter Rees and Elliot Tong  

 
 

1. Election of Chair 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Beckett, seconded by Councillor Thornburrow, and 
agreed by majority that Councillor Manning be elected as Chair for the 2025/26 
municipal year. 
 
 

2. Election of Vice-Chair 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Manning, seconded by Councillor Beckett, and agreed 
unanimously that Councillor Thornburrow be elected as Vice-Chair for the 2025/26 
municipal year. 
 
 

3. Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Richard Howitt (substituted by 
Councillor Black), Elisa Meschini (substituted by Councillor Goodliffe) and Richard Swift 
(substituted by Councillor Robertson). 
 
Councillor Baigent declared a general non-statutory disclosable interest as a member of 
the Cambridge Cycling Campaign (Camcycle). 
 
Councillor Manning declared a general non-statutory disclosable interest as a member 
of the Cambridge Cycling Campaign (Camcycle). 
 
Councillor Tong declared a general non-statutory disclosable interest as a member of 
the Cambridge Cycling Campaign (Camcycle). 

 

4. Minutes – 18 December 2024 

 
The minutes of the previous meeting, held on 18 December 2024, were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
 



While discussing the minutes action log, Members: 
 

− Expressed concern that some longstanding requests for agenda items that were 
recorded on the action log had not been resolved, and it was suggested that more 
clarity and information could be included in future iterations. It was noted that the 
Chair and Vice-Chair would hold an agenda planning meeting with officers to 
discuss future agenda items, as indicated in the action log. 
 

− Requested that the briefing note on Resident Parking Schemes that was circulated 
to members of the committee in March 2025 be recirculated to the current members 
of the committee.  Action required 

 
The Committee noted its action log. 

 
 

5. Public Questions and Petitions 
 

The committee was informed that eight public questions had been received. Six of 
these questions had been accepted, while two were rejected as they had been received 
after the deadline. The Chair informed the committee that he would exercise his 
discretion to accept one of the late questions, and that all the questions would be taken 
at the start of the relevant agenda items. It was noted that five questions related to 
Agenda Item 6 (York Street Area Residents Parking Scheme) and two questions related 
to agenda item 7 (Guest Road Area Residents Parking Scheme). 

 

 
6. Traffic Regulation Order Objections Associated with the Introduction of the 

York Street Area Residents Parking Scheme 
 

The Committee received a report proposing the implementation of a Residential Parking 
Scheme (RPS) in the York Street area, which had been developed by the Greater 
Cambridge Partnership (GCP) on behalf of the County Council. 
 
Martin Lucas-Smith was invited to address the committee. As a long-term resident of 
the affected area, Mr Lucas-Smith welcomed the proposals, drawing attention to the 
significant parking issues and infractions experienced in the vicinity. Noting the difficulty 
for emergency vehicles to access properties on Sleaford Street and Ainsworth Street 
due to parking on both sides of the road, he noted that other surrounding streets had 
parking on only one side of the road. Notwithstanding, Mr Lucas-Smith expressed 
concern that the scheme did not include bicycle parking spaces, and he proposed that a 
review six months after the scheme’s implementation could identify underused car 
parking bays to be replaced by designated bicycle parking bays, alongside other 
potential amendments. He also raised safety concerns about access to Hooper Street 
from the Ironworks development. In response to Mr Lucas-Smith’s comments, one 
Member highlighted the importance of the committee being informed of the outcome of 
any post-implementation reviews carried out on RPSs. 
 
Harriet Lamden was invited to address the committee, and her comments were read out 
on her behalf by Dr Anne McConville. As a resident of Fairsford Place, Miss Lamden 



expressed her opposition to the proposals, suggesting that the consultation process 
had been carried out in a misleading and undemocratic manner. Arguing that the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) map had changed during the process and that residents were 
unclear on the content of the proposals, she expressed concern that despite the 
community attending meetings, submitting comments and engaging throughout the 
process, the feedback appeared to have been ignored. Highlighting that 19 out of 21 
properties consulted on Fairsford Place had objected to the proposals, as set out in 
Appendix 5 of the report, with only 2 out of 21 supporting the proposals, she argued that 
it would be undemocratic to continue with the scheme as it was proposed. In response 
to Miss Lamden’s comments, Members sought clarification on the statistics she had 
provided. Members were informed that TRO consultations often had different results to 
earlier engagements because they involved the specific scheme design and provided 
the last opportunity for people to object, while it was also observed that people were 
generally more vocal in opposing proposals than supporting them, and that therefore a 
higher level of objections was not necessarily indicative of the actual level of opposition. 
Members were assured that consultations had been carried out in line with statutory 
requirements. 
 
Dr Anne McConville was invited to address the committee. As a resident of Fairsford 
Place for 20 years, Dr McConville acknowledged the historic issues faced by the area 
which were exacerbated by the nearby Beehive Shopping Centre, drawing particular 
attention to blocked pavements and access points. However, she highlighted an 
increasing level of objections being raised in parking consultations over recent years 
and informed members that residents opposed the proposals as published, despite the 
significant levels of parking stress and problems that were experienced in the area. 
Notwithstanding, she suggested there would be greater support for an RPS if the 
proposed double-yellow lines were not included. In response to Dr McConville’s 
comments, Members queried whether many houses on the street had garages, and she 
informed the committee that although a lot of houses had garages, they were generally 
not large enough to park cars in them. 
 
Nicholas Richardson was invited to address the committee. Arguing that the current 
system, while problematic at times, generally ensured residents had space for parking 
in the evening and at weekends, Mr Richardson expressed opposition to the proposed 
hours of the scheme. He expressed concern on the impact to people visiting residents 
during the proposed operating hours and observed that the hours of neighbouring 
schemes were not as extensive. He suggested that additional parking spaces could be 
installed on St Matthew’s Gardens to help alleviate problems caused by the proposed 
removal of double yellow lines. 
 
Andrew Deakin was invited to address the committee. As a resident of Ainsworth 
Street, Mr Deakin questioned the legality of the proposed scheme, arguing that the 
Council had not modelled the impact of the proposals and therefore was unable to 
either assess its costs or benefits, or provide residents with accurate information during 
the consultation. He also suggested that the figures did not demonstrate a need for a 
parking scheme and that the proposals could in fact create problems that did not 
currently exist, arguing that refuse collection vehicles were able to access all the 
streets. He also expressed concern that the scheme was being proposed to support the 
inclusion of a section of the Chisholm Trail in the area, which he suggested would be 
unsafe and inappropriate. 



 
A written statement was read out on behalf of Councillor Richard Howitt, the County 
Councillor for the Petersfield division. Noting that residents of Ainsworth Street in 
particular had historically demonstrated a significant level of opposition to the 
implementation of an RPS in the area, Councillor Howitt emphasised that the current 
proposals were the result of requests from local residents in the wider area requesting 
that a scheme be implemented. He drew attention to small majority in favour of the 
proposals and highlighted that the Fire service had requested changes but nonetheless 
expressed concern that the proposals as published were not satisfactory. He suggested 
that removing Ainsworth Street, Ainsworth Place, Fairsford Place and St Matthew’s 
Gardens could result in significantly fewer objections to the scheme, but argued that if 
the current proposals were implemented, a full review should be carried out six months 
after their implementation. Asking officers to comment on a pre-action letter of objection 
that had been submitted to the Council, he also noted that a further option was to 
abandon the scheme altogether.  
 
Councillor Naomi Bennett, a City Councillor for the Abbey ward, was invited to address 
the committee. Noting that she held a neutral position on the proposals, Councillor 
Bennett drew attention to the significant turnover of residents in the area and suggested 
that the results of historic consultations were therefore of questionable relevance. 
Suggesting that there was insufficient information available on the cause of non-
resident parking in the area, she argued that it was difficult to assess the scheme’s 
potential impact on parking. She highlighted concerns about visitors from the hotels on 
Newmarket Road parking in the area and suggested that this issue justified a seven-
day scheme, were one to be implemented. As a mobility scooter user, she also 
highlighted the difficulties that could be experienced in navigating the area, a problem 
that had also been raised by the Fire service. 
 
The Chair reminded the committee that it was not being asked to approve the proposals 
but was instead being asked to recommend their approval to the Executive Director of 
Place and Sustainability, in consultation with the local Member. It was also noted that 
the local Member consultation throughout the process was predominantly carried out 
with the local County Councillor, rather than local City Councillors. 
 
While discussing the report, individual Members: 
 

− Highlighted that the York Street area was one of the few remaining areas in the city 
centre with no parking controls, with a significant level of non-residents therefore 
using it to park at no cost during the day, with vehicles regularly circulating to find a 
space, causing safety concerns for the significant number of cyclists passing 
through the area. 
 

− Noted there were significant problems caused by parking in the area, including 
residents not being able to access their garages or remove their bins, or 
occasionally not being able to leave their house, as well as incidents where fire 
engines had not been able to access streets to attend to fires. It was confirmed that 
the Fire service had been consulted on the proposals, although it had not submitted 
a formal response. 
 



− Clarified that a separate permit scheme for Fairsford Place, as proposed by 
residents of the street, would be too small in scale to be effective and would 
effectively become a privatisation of the highway. However, it was also noted that 
residents of the street had suggested they would support the scheme if the double 
yellow lines were removed. 
 

− Argued that the removal of parking on both sides of Ainsworth Street could result in 
faster traffic flow and suggested that traffic calming measures should be considered 
as part of the scheme to mitigate this impact. However, Members were informed that 
due to the limited road space, the installation of such measures would require the 
removal of further parking spaces. 
 

− Highlighted the importance of reviewing the impacts of the scheme six months after 
its implementation and sought clarification on the scope of potential amendments 
following such a review. Members were advised that any changes could be made 
following a review, although it was emphasised that any significant changes would 
likely require a further consultation. 
 

− Queried whether the scheme could include a weight limit for registered vehicles. It 
was suggested that such measures would be difficult to enforce due to the 
requirement to ensure access, but it was noted that the County Council was 
investigating whether vehicle size limits could be implemented in the future. 
 

− Drew attention to the use of electric charging bays on Sleaford Street being used by 
non-electric vehicles, as well as inappropriate pavement parking in the area. 
 

− Suggested that it would be beneficial to understand why the level of objection had 
increased between the separate consultations and how the nature of objections had 
evolved. 
 

− Expressed concern that there were no printed copies of the agenda at the meeting, 
although it was noted that the County Council did not habitually print agendas for 
meetings unless requested by members of the public. 

 

− Sought clarification on what amendments could be made to the proposals without 
needing to republish the TRO. Members were informed that minor amendments 
could be made, such as changing the length of a bay, but more significant changes 
would require a further mini consultation, while significant changes would require the 
TRO to be republished. While the hours of operation of the scheme could potentially 
be changed as minor amendments, as had been done with other schemes in the 
past, it was suggested that there would need to be widespread local support for 
such changes, and it was noted that some parts of the area were likely to require a 
seven-day operation. 
 

It was proposed by the Chair, seconded by the Vice-Chair and agreed by majority, to 
defer the item to the next scheduled meeting of the committee, to make any potential 
changes to issues that had been raised during the meeting, such as bicycle parking and 
operational hours. It was noted that deferring the item to the next meeting would result 
in the scheme not being implemented until 2026. 

 



 

7. Traffic Regulation Order Objections Associated with Amendments to the 
Guest Road Area Residents Parking Scheme 

 
The Committee received a report proposing some amendments to the RPS in the Guest 
Road area. 
 
Donna Ferguson was invited to address the committee on behalf of the Guest Road 
Residents’ Association (GRRA). Noting that a survey conducted by the GRRA had 
suggested a majority of local residents supported the proposals, as had also been the 
case with the formal TRO consultation, Mrs Ferguson welcomed the proposals and paid 
tribute to officers for working with the local community to develop a scheme that 
benefitted from such a high level of support. Arguing that the current scheme was no 
longer fit for purpose due to widespread changes in working practices, she highlighted 
the difficulty in finding a space to park during the day and the damage inflicted on cars 
and the local highway as a result of the high level of circulation. 
 
Henry Fletcher was invited to address the committee. Noting his objection to the 
proposals as published, Mr Fletcher argued that they did not adequately take into 
consideration the multifunctional use of Mackenzie Road, which connected Mill Road to 
Anglia Ruskin University (ARU). He argued that the implementation of double-sided 
resident parking bays on Mackenzie Road would be unfair and unjustified, suggesting 
that the demand for extra spaces was a result of single-side parking on Guest Road 
and Willis Road. He suggested that the current issues could be resolved with the 
implementation of fewer additional parking spaces and questioned the benefits of the 
proposals to Mackenzie Road, as well as the wider area. 
 
A written statement was read out on behalf of Councillor Richard Howitt, the County 
Councillor for the Petersfield division. Highlighting the collaboration between officers 
and residents to develop the proposals, Councillor Howitt emphasised that changes to 
the scheme had been sought over many years and attracted widespread local support 
for additional resident parking in the area due to the small size of the scheme. Drawing 
attention to the majority support of residents on all roads indicated in the preliminary 
resident consultation, including Mackenzie Road, he welcomed the proposals. He 
highlighted that the three parking bays opposite the doctor surgery on Guest Road 
would continue to offer limited free parking, while the proposals would increase the 
number of public parking bays in the zone during working hours for visitors to the local 
shops, with six of these bays allowing people to park for longer than 30 minutes. He 
also suggested there was resident support for an EV scheme in the Guest Road area in 
the future. 
 
While discussing the report, individual Members: 
 

− Clarified that within the proposed schemes, cars would be able to park anywhere 
where there were no double yellow lines, subject to any other restrictions in place. 
 

− Noted there were a large number of student houses within the area and sought 
clarification on whether students were eligible for resident parking permits and 
whether ARU had been consulted on the proposals. It was confirmed that ARU had 
not been independently consulted, and Members were informed that any policy on 



student car ownership was a matter for ARU that could not be monitored by the 
County Council. 
 

− Suggested that the proposals could be reviewed six months after their 
implementation, were they to be approved, although it was noted that the current 
scheme was successful and the proposed changes were widely supported, and as it 
was not a new scheme, a review would therefore not be necessary. It was also 
noted that the Guest Road Area RPS was the most oversubscribed scheme in the 
city. 
 

− Expressed concern that the proposals would increase the amount of parking space 
in the area, arguing that an increase in capacity would result in an increase of the 
number of cars in the area, and it was suggested that this contradicted wider 
objectives to reduce the level of traffic in Cambridge. 
 

− Sought clarification on whether the current 30-minute free parking bays on Willis 
Road that were not included on the scheme drawing would remain if the proposals 
were implemented.  Action required 
 

− Suggested that it could be beneficial to retain single yellow lines on the north side of 
McKenzie Road, although it was highlighted that this would reduce the number of 
available parking spaces while effectively advertising free spaces outside the 
operating hours. It was also emphasised that the proposals sought to future proof 
the scheme to avoid the need for a further review in a few years. 

 
It was resolved to: 
 

Recommend that the Executive Director of Place and Sustainability, in 
consultation with the Local Member, approves the implementation of the 
amendments to the Guest Road area Resident Parking Scheme, as published. 

 
 

8. Agenda Plan 
 
While discussing the committee’s agenda plan, it was suggested that the committee 
could receive a future report on cross-pavement charging of electric vehicles, and it was 
noted that the proposal would be discussed at the upcoming agenda planning meeting 
with the Chair and Vice-Chair 
 
 

Chair 
24 September 2025 


